
Kershaw County Planning and Zoning Commission
Regular Session Minutes – March 11th, 2024, 5:30 PM

County Council Chambers
515 Walnut Street, Camden, SC 29020

Members in Attendance: Fiona Martin, Robert Horton, Libby Davis, Ned Towell, Heather Dykes, Clifton
Emmons, and Lanny Gunter
Members Absent: None
Staff in Attendance: Joey Adams-Raczkowski, John DuBose, Justin Moore, Rhonda Darity, and Hannah Doster

Call to Order
The Chairwoman, Fiona Martin, called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM.

General Public Comment Period - None

Approval of Minutes
Chairwoman Martin stated that the minutes for the February 12th, 2024 regular meeting had been distributed
electronically. She asked if there were any other additions, corrections, or deletions to the minutes. Hearing none
she called for a motion. Ms. Davis made a motion to approve the minutes. Seconded by Mr. Emmons, and all
voted to approve.

Executive Session
Chairwoman Martin made a motion to remove this item from the agenda. Mr. Towell seconded the motion, and
all voted in favor.

New Business

Rezoning Request for 116 and 120 Mill Creek Trace, TMS# 348-00-00-120 and 348-00-00-085 from R-15
to RD-2 - Case 24-06

Chairwoman Martin introduced the case and turned it over to Mr. Adams-Raczkowski for the staff report.

Mr Adams-Rackzowski stated that the applicants, Joe and Cindy Smith, would like to rezoning these two (2)
parcels from R-15 (Low Density Residential) to RD-2 (Rural Resource District in order to place a manufactured
home for their son on 116 Mill Creek Trace. He reminded the Commission of the six (6) categories to consider
when deliberating. He discussed how the property owners have rezoned an adjoining parcel in the past. Mr.
Adams-Raczkowski, stated that the zoning must be contiguous and that spot zoning is not allowed. The
applicant’s have requested that 120 Mill Creek Trace be rezoned in order to be contiguous with RD-2 district. If
approved by Kershaw County Council any and all uses allowed in the RD-2 district would be permitted.

Chairwoman Martin asked if the homeowners would like to come up to speak about the rezoning request.

Mr. and Mrs. Smith explained to the Planning Commission that they have rezoned an adjoining parcel
previously to allow another son to place a manufactured home.

Public Comments - None

Chairwoman Martin asked if there was a motion to open for discussion. Ned Towell made a motion of
forwarding a favorable recommendation to Kershaw County Council, Mr. Horton seconded the motion. Mr.

515 Walnut Street, Room 160 Camden, SC 29020 803-425-7233 Fax 803-424-5268
www.kershaw.sc.gov

Minutes approved on April 8, 2024

http://www.kershaw.sc.gov


Towell stated that a rezoning had been allowed previously, it is contiguous, and sees no problem with the
request. Mr. Horton stated that there was no opposition to the request presented.

Chairwoman Martin asked if there was any further discussion. Hearing none, she called for a vote. All voted to
approve forwarding a favorable recommendation to the Kershaw County Council. .

Rezoning Request for 1512 Ross Road and 132 Golden Pine Trail, TMS# 347-00-00-028 and
347-00-00-034 from R-15 to R-6 - Case 24-07

Chairwoman Martin introduced the case and turned it over to Mr. Adams-Raczkowski for the staff report.

Mr. Adams-Raczkowski stated that Golden Pine Trail is a private dirt road that appears to service existing
homes. The applicant George Delk on behalf of Largesse Limited Performance, LLC is requesting to rezone
two (2) parcels from R-15 (Low Density Residential) to R-6 (High density Residential). The parcels are
surrounded by the R-15 zoning district. If approved by Kershaw County Council any and all uses allowed in the
R-6 district would be permitted. Ms. Dykes and Mr. Emmons had questions for staff. Hearing no further
questions, the Chairwoman asked if the applicant would like to speak.

The applicant, George Delk informed the Commission that they are not building low income housing. There is a
market for people with a little age on them. He stated that his intentions are to build duplexes, the market might
change and they may have to build single family homes. Mr. Delk provided the Commision members a proposed
rendition of a duplex. They do not have an exact layout. Most are two (2) bedrooms with an office or three (3)
bedrooms. Possibly a five (5) to eight (8) year project. Mr. Delk addressed questions from the Commission.

Public Comment

Chairwoman Martin explained the rules on public comments. She opened the floor for those signed up for public
comment.

Karen Boone, Kennth Parker, John Brittain, Tammy Livingston, and Charles Sazdaj were not in favor of the
proposed rezoning. Concerns ranged to the impact on the community, traffic, overcrowding schools, sewer, road
conditions, no guarantee that the duplexes would be occupied by “mature people'', intentions can be changed,
horrible impact on wildlife, duplexes look cheap and will decrease property values, more speeders on the road,
and construction equipment on an already burden road.

Chairwoman Martin closed the public comment, and asked if there was a motion to open for discussion. Mr.
Emmons made a motion of unfavorable recommendation to Kershaw County Council, Mr. Towell seconded the
motion. Mr. Emmons stated that he owns two homes in Elgin. One each on Watson Street, and he agrees with
everything said. Growth in the County is almost uncontrolled and it’s time we get a handle on it. Mr. Towell
agreed completely with Mr. Emmons. We need to stand up and think about smart growth. The Chairwoman
would like to see other housing options than single family homes. She does not think it is the right move to
rezoning.

Chairwoman Martin asked if there was further discussion about the rezoning request. Hearing none, she called
for a vote, and all voted to recommend an unfavorable recommendation to Kershaw County Council.

Rezoning Request for 1147 Smyrna Road TMS# 307-00-00-011 from MRD-1 to RD-2 - Case 24-08

Chairwoman Martin introduced the case and turned it over to Mr. Adams-Raczkowski for the staff report.

Mr. Adams-Rackowski explained that MRD-1 and RD-2 (Rural Resource District) are the same except for one
thing, MRD-1 zoning district does not allow single wide manufactured homes. This is a vacant lot, over six (6)
acres. The character of the area supports the request. If approved by Kershaw County Council any and all uses

515 Walnut Street, Room 160 Camden, SC 29020 803-425-7233 Fax 803-424-5268
www.kershaw.sc.gov

Minutes approved on April 8, 2024

http://www.kershaw.sc.gov


allowed in the RD-2 district would be permitted. Ms. Dykes asked about an existing brick home on the parcel,
and an 18-wheeler business. Mr. Adams-Raczkowski stated that he was not aware of a brick home on the
property. He deferred these questions to the applicant.

Chairwoman Martin asked if the applicant would come up to speak about the rezoning case. Mr. Collins spoke
about the land that surrounds the property belonging to his family. In response to Ms. Dykes’ questions
concerning a brick house running an 18-wheeler business out of it, Mr. Collins confirmed that this was on
another parcel which he did not own.

Public Comment

Chairwoman Martin explained the rules for public comment. She opened the floor for the people signed up for
public comment.

Steve Ammer stated that he does not want a trailer park placed on the property later down the road. He is okay
with a single wide going on the property. Wanted to confirm that the parcel could not be further subdivided.

Chairwoman Martin closed the public comment, and asked if there was a motion to open for discussion. Mr.
Emmons made a motion of forwarding a favorable recommendation to Kershaw County Council, Mr. Towell
seconded the motion. Mr. Emmons felt that all issues have been well addressed. Mr. Towell agreed with Mr.
Emmons.

Chairwoman Martin asked if there was further discussion concerning the rezoning request. Hearing none, she
called for a vote, and all voted to approve the motion of forwarding a favorable recommendation to Kershaw
County Council.

Request for Text Amendment by Kershaw County Case 24-10

Chairwoman Martin introduced the case and turned it over to Mr. Adams-Raczkowski for the staff report.

Mr. Adams stated that the current Zoning and Land Development Regulations require the pavement life of any
new subdivision to be 20 years. We are not getting 20 years out of the product we are seeing today. He explained
that in 2022, Kershaw County partnered with Michael Baker, our roadway engineer, and SCDOT. Michael Baker
partnered with the SCDOT lab and asked what kind of pavement we need in Kershaw County, so that we get a
20 year pavement life. Through this we have landed with the South Carolina Asphalt Pavement Association
(SCAPA) standards. Mr. Adams-Raczkowski explained that the County would like to incorporate the latest
SCAPA standards into the code.This would make it more user friendly. The county would like nothing less than
3.5 inches of asphalt and how that would help to achieve the 20 year life for roads.

Mrs. Dykes discussed the SCDOT standards for all roads, soil type is used in determination, and they do not
recommend 3.5” standards. Mr. Adams- Raczkowski stated that SCDOT does not address subdivision road
standards.

Chairwoman Martin asked if there was further discussion about the text amendment. Hearing none, she called
for a motion. Mr. Towell made a motion of favorable recommendation to Kershaw County Council, and Mr.
Emmons seconded. Mr. Towell stated if the County was going to take these roads in, we should require a 20 year
life expectancy.

Voting in favor of the motion was Libby Davis, Fiona Martin, Lanny Gunter, Ned Towell, Clifton Emmons, and
Robert Horton. Voting to oppose the motion was Heather Dykes. The motion carries 6:1.

515 Walnut Street, Room 160 Camden, SC 29020 803-425-7233 Fax 803-424-5268
www.kershaw.sc.gov

Minutes approved on April 8, 2024

http://www.kershaw.sc.gov


Staff Updates
● Joint meeting with County Council and Planning Commission on March 18, 2024 at 6:00 PM at the

Kershaw County Economic Development Office.

Adjournment
The Chairwoman asked if there were any additional items to be brought up before the Commission. Hearing
none, she motioned to adjourn. Mr. Emmons seconded the motion, with all voting in favor. The meeting was
adjourned at 6:46 PM.

Respectfully submitted,
Rhonda Darity
Rhonda Darity
Secretary

515 Walnut Street, Room 160 Camden, SC 29020 803-425-7233 Fax 803-424-5268
www.kershaw.sc.gov

Minutes approved on April 8, 2024

http://www.kershaw.sc.gov

